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information on how to access and
participate in the webinar will be posted
on the Commission’s Web site
(www.mmec.gov) at least one week in
advance of the meeting.

These meetings are designed to
further implementation of the
Commission’s Strategic Plan, which
recognizes that the Arctic warrants
special attention because its marine
mammals, ecosystems, and marine
mammal dependent coastal
communities are being impacted
profoundly by climate change. The
Commission’s focus on Alaska and the
Arctic includes current work to promote
effective consultation procedures
between Alaska Native Tribes and
federal agencies, efforts to improve
understanding of the cumulative
impacts of climate change and human
activities on Arctic marine mammals,
and engagement in domestic and
international science and management
programs for polar bears, walrus, ice
seals, and beluga and bowhead whales.

A proposed agenda for the Anchorage
meeting is posted on the Commission’s
Web site at www.mmc.gov, and may be
subject to change based on the
information provided by participants
during the Barrow, Kotzebue, and Nome
meetings.

Additional information about the
Marine Mammal Commission, the
Alaska meetings, and documents related
to the Commission’s consultations with
Native communities can be found at
WWW.Immc.gov.

Dated: January 11, 2016.
Rebecca J. Lent,
Executive Director.
[FR Doc. 2016-00692 Filed 1-14-16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6820-31-P

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND
SPACE ADMINISTRATION

[Notice (15-118)]
Privacy Act of 1974; Privacy Act
System of Records

AGENCY: National Aeronautics and
Space Administration (NASA).

ACTION: Notice of proposed revisions to
existing Privacy Act systems of records.

SUMMARY: Pursuant to the provisions of
the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. 552a),
the National Aeronautics and Space
Administration is issuing public notice
of its proposal to modify two of its
previously noticed system of records.
This notice publishes updates to
systems of records as set forth below
under the caption SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION.

DATES: Submit comments within 30
calendar days from the date of this
publication. The changes will take effect
at the end of that period, if no adverse
comments are received.

ADDRESSES: Patti F. Stockman, Privacy
Act Officer, Office of the Chief
Information Officer, National
Aeronautics and Space Administration
Headquarters, Washington, DC 20546—
0001, (202) 358—4787, NASA-
PAOfficer@nasa.gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
NASA Privacy Act Officer, Patti F.

Stockman, (202) 358—-4787, NASA-
PAOfficer@nasa.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Pursuant
to the provisions of the Privacy Act of
1974, 5 U.S.C. 5524, and as part of its
biennial System of Records review,
NASA is making modifications to two
human resource related systems of
records including: Update of Locations
and Categories of records; addition of
Purpose statements; and elaboration of
Safeguards sections. Changes for
specific NASA systems of records are
set forth below:

NASA Personnel and Payroll
Systems/NASA 10NPPS: Updating
Locations of Records, adding a Purpose
section and elaborating the Safeguards
section to be more precise. Special
Personnel Records/NASA 10SPER:
Updating Locations and Categories of
Records, adding a Purpose section and
elaborating the Safeguards section to be
more complete.

Submitted by:
Renee P. Wynn,
NASA Chief Information Officer.

NASA 10NPPS

SYSTEM NAME: NASA PERSONNEL AND PAYROLL
SYSTEMS.

SYSTEM LOCATION:

Locations 9 and 18, as set forth in
Appendix A; in the Federal Personnel
and Payroll System of the Department of
Interior Federal agency Human
Resources Shared Service Center located
at National Business Center, 7301 W.
Mansfield, Denver, Co. 80235; and in
the Office of Personnel Management’s
Electronic Official Personnel File
located at the National Business Center
7301 W. Mansfield, Denver, Co. 80235.

CATEGORIES OF INDIVIDUALS COVERED BY THE
SYSTEM:

This system maintains information on
present and former NASA employees.

CATEGORIES OF RECORDS IN THE SYSTEM:
The data contained in this system of

records includes payroll, employee

leave, insurance, labor and human

resource distribution and overtime
information.

PURPOSE(S):

Records in this system are used to
facilitate NASA administration of
payroll functions and personnel
decisions.

AUTHORITY FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE SYSTEM:

51 U.S.C. 20113(a); 44 U.S.C. 3101; 5
U.S.C. 5501 et seq.; 5 U.S.C. 6301 et seq.

ROUTINE USES OF RECORDS MAINTAINED IN THE
SYSTEM, INCLUDING CATEGORIES OF USERS AND
THE PURPOSE OF SUCH USES:

Any disclosures of information will
be compatible with the purpose for
which the Agency collected the
information. The following are routine
uses: (1) To furnish to a third party a
verification of an employee’s status
upon written request of the employee;
(2) to facilitate the verification of
employee contributions and insurance
data with carriers and collection agents;
(3) to report to the Office of Personnel
Management (a) withholdings of
premiums for life insurance, health
benefits, and retirements, and (b)
separated employees subject to
retirement; (4) to furnish the U.S.
Treasury magnetic tape reports and/or
electronic files on net pay, net savings
allotments and bond transmittal
pertaining to each employee; (5) to
provide the Internal Revenue Service
with details of wages taxable under the
Federal Insurance Contributions Act
and to furnish a magnetic tape listing on
Federal tax withholdings; (6) to furnish
various financial institutions itemized
listings of employee’s pay and savings
allotments transmitted to the
institutions in accordance with
employee requests; (7) to provide
various Federal, State, and local taxing
authorities itemized listings of
withholdings for individual income
taxes; (8) to respond to requests for State
employment security agencies and the
U.S. Department of Labor for
employment, wage, and separation data
on former employees for the purpose of
determining eligibility for
unemployment compensation; (9) to
report to various Combined Federal
Campaign offices total contributions
withheld from employee wages; (10) to
furnish leave balances and activity to
the Office of Personnel Management
upon request; (11) to furnish data to
labor organizations in accordance with
negotiated agreements; (12) to furnish
pay data to the Department of State for
certain NASA employees located
outside the United States; (13) to furnish
data to a consumer reporting agency or
bureau, private collection contractor or
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debt collection center in accordance
with section 3711 of Title 31 of the
United States Code; (14) to forward
delinquent debts, and all relevant
information related thereto, to the U.S.
Department of Treasury, for collection;
(15) to the Office of Child Support
Enforcement (OCSE), Administration for
Children and Families, Department of
Health and Human Services (DHHS),
National Directory of New Hires, part of
the Federal Parent Locator Service and
the Federal Tax Offset System, DHHS/
OCSE No. 09-90-0074, for the purpose
of locating individuals to establish
paternity, establishing and modifying
orders of child support, identifying
sources of income, and for other child
support enforcement actions as required
by the Personal Responsibility and
Work Opportunity Reconciliation act
(Pub. L. 104-193); (16) to consumer
reporting agencies as required by the
Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C.
1681a(f)); (17) to private collection
contractors as required by the Federal
Claims Collection Act of 1966, as
amended by the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1966 (31 U.S.C.
3701, et seq.); and (18) NASA standard
routine uses as set forth in Appendix B.

POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR STORING,
RETRIEVING, ACCESSING,

RETAINING, AND DISPOSING OF RECORDS IN THE
SYSTEM:

STORAGE:
Records are maintained in electronic
format.

RETRIEVABILITY:

Records are retrieved from the system
by the individual’s name, unique
personal identification code and/or
Social Security Number.

SAFEGUARDS:

Electronic records are maintained on
secure NASA servers and protected in
accordance with all Federal standards.
Additionally, NASA server and data
management environments employ
infrastructure encryption technologies
both in data transmission and at rest on
servers. Electronic messages sent within
and outside of the Agency that convey
sensitive data are encrypted and
transmitted by staff via pre-approved
electronic encryption systems as
required by NASA policy. Approved
security plans are in place for
information systems containing the
records in accordance with FISMA and
OMB Circular A-130, Management of
Federal Information Resources. Only
authorized personnel requiring
information in the official discharge of
their duties are authorized access to
records through approved access or

authentication methods. Access to
electronic records is achieved only from
workstations within the NASA Intranet
or via a secure Virtual Private Network
(VPN) connection that requires two-
factor hardware token authentication or
via employee PIV badge authentication
from NASA-issued computers. The
Department of Interior and Office of
Personnel Management Federal agency
servers in Denver are also compliant
with the FISMA and OMB Circular A—
130 security standards and
requirements.

RETENTION AND DISPOSAL:

Records are maintained and
transferred to the National Personnel
Records Center (NPRC) in accordance
with NASA Records Retention
Schedules, Schedule 3 Item 47. Records
transferred to NPRC will be destroyed
when 10 years old by NPRC.

SYSTEM MANAGERS AND ADDRESSES:

Director, Financial Management
Division, Office of the Chief Financial
Officer, and Assistant Administrator for
Human Capital Management, Office of
Human Capital Management, Location
1.

Subsystem Managers: Chief Financial
Officers and Human Capital Officers,
Locations 2 through 9, and 11, Director,
Financial Management Division, and
Director, Human Resources Division,
Location 18. Locations are as set forth in
Appendix A.

NOTIFICATION PROCEDURE:

Information may be obtained from the
cognizant system or subsystem manager
listed above.

RECORD ACCESS PROCEDURE:

Requests from individuals should be
addressed to the same address as
identified in the Notification section
above.

CONTESTING RECORD PROCEDURES:

The NASA regulations for access to
records and for contesting contents and
appealing initial determinations by the
individual concerned appear at 14 CFR
part 1212.

RECORD SOURCE CATEGORIES:

Individual on whom the record is
maintained, personnel office(s), and the
individual’s supervisor.

EXEMPTIONS:

None.

NASA 10SPER

SYSTEM NAME:
Special Personnel Records.

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION:
None.

SYSTEM LOCATION:

Locations 1 through 9 inclusive, and
locations 11 and 18 as set forth in
Appendix A, and at the Department of
Interior Federal Agency Human
Resources Shared Service Center located
at National Business Center 7301 W.
Mansfield, Denver Co, 80235.

CATEGORIES OF INDIVIDUALS COVERED BY THE
SYSTEM:

This system maintains information on
candidates for and recipients of awards
or NASA training; civilian and active
duty military detailees to NASA;
participants in enrollee programs;
Faculty, Science, National Research
Council and other Fellows, associates
and guest workers including those at
NASA Centers but not on NASA rolls;
NASA contract and grant awardees and
their associates having access to NASA
premises and records; individuals with
interest in NASA matters including
Advisory Committee Members; NASA
employees and family members,
prospective employees and former
employees; former and current
participants in existing and future
educational programs, including the
Summer High School Apprenticeship
Research Program (SHARP).

CATEGORIES OF RECORDS IN THE SYSTEM:

Special Program Files including: (1)
Foreign National Scientist files; (2)
Applications for, and issuance of,
passports and visas together with other
information for international
government travel; (3) Award files; (4)
Counseling files, Life and Health
Insurance, Retirement, Upward
Mobility, and Work Injury Counseling
files; (5) Military and Civilian detailee
files; (6) Personnel Development files
such as nominations for and records of
training or education, Upward Mobility
Program files, Intern Program files,
Apprentice files, and Enrollee Program
files; (7) Special Employment files such
as Federal Junior Fellowship Program
files, Pathways Program files, Summer
Employment files, Worker-Trainee
Opportunity Program files, NASA
Executive Position files, Expert and
Consultant files, and Cooperative
Education Program files; (8) Welfare to
Work files; and (9) Supervisory
Appraisals under Competitive
Placement Plan. Correspondence and
related information including: (1)
Claims correspondence and records
about insurance such as life, health, and
travel; (2) Congressional and other
Special Interest correspondence,
including employment inquiries; (3)
Correspondence and records concerning
travel related to permanent change of
address; (4) Debt complaint
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correspondence; (5) Employment
interview records; (6) Information
related to outside employment and
activities of NASA employees; (7)
Placement follow-ups; (8)
Preemployment inquiries and reference
checks; (9) Preliminary records related
to possible adverse actions; (10) Records
related to reductions in force; (11)
Records under administrative as well as
negotiated grievance procedures; (12)
Separation information including exit
interview records, death certificates and
other information concerning death,
retirement records, and other
information pertaining to separated
employees; (13) Special planning
analysis and administrative information;
(14) Performance appraisal records; (15)
Working papers for prospective or
pending retirements.

Special Records and Rosters
including: (1) Locator files, (2) Ranking
lists of employees; (3) Promotion
candidate lists; (4) Retired military
employee records; (5) Retiree records;
(6) Follow-up records for educational
programs, such as the SHARP and other
existing or future programs.
Agencywide and Center automated
personnel information: Rosters,
applications, recommendations,
assignment information and evaluations
of Faculty, Science, National Research
Council and other Fellows, associates
and guest workers including those at
NASA Centers but not on NASA rolls;
also, information about NASA contract
and grant awardees and their associates
having access to NASA premises and
records.

Information about members of
advisory committees and similar
organizations: All NASA-maintained
information of the same types as, but
not limited to, that information required
in systems of records for which the
Office of Personnel Management and
other Federal personnel-related agencies
publish Government wide Privacy Act
Notices in the Federal Register.

PURPOSE

Records in this system enable NASA
to manage Personnel records used to
make personnel employment decisions
and to facilitate decisions regarding
employees’ rights and benefits of
employees, and other special personnel
associated with NASA and listed in
Categories of Individuals of this system
notice.

AUTHORITY FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE SYSTEM:
51 U.S.C. 20113(a); 44 U.S.C. 3101.

ROUTINE USES OF RECORDS MAINTAINED IN THE
SYSTEM, INCLUDING CATEGORIES OF USERS AND
THE PURPOSE OF SUCH USES:

Any disclosures of information will
be compatible with the purpose for
which the Agency collected the
information. The following are routine
uses: (1) Disclosures to organizations or
individuals having contract, legal,
administrative or cooperative
relationships with NASA, including
labor unions, academic organizations,
governmental organizations, non-profit
organizations, and contractors and to
organizations or individuals seeking or
having available a service or other
benefit or advantage. The purpose of
such disclosures is to satisfy a need or
needs, further cooperative relationships,
offer information, or respond to a
request; (2) disclosures to Federal
agencies developing statistical or data
presentations having need of
information about individuals in the
records; (3) responses to other Federal
agencies and other organizations having
legal or administrative responsibilities
related to programs and individuals in
the records; and (4) NASA standard
routine uses as set forth in Appendix B.

POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR STORING,
RETRIEVING, ACCESSING, RETAINING, AND
DISPOSING OF RECORDS IN THE SYSTEM:

STORAGE:

Records in this system are maintained
as hard-copy documents and on
electronic media.

RETRIEVABILITY:

Records are retrieved from the system
by any one or a combination of name,
birth date, Social Security Number, or
NASA unique identification number.

SAFEGUARDS:

Electronic records are maintained on
secure NASA servers and protected in
accordance with all Federal standards
and those established in NASA
regulations at 14 CFR 1212.605.
Additionally, NASA server and data
management environments employ
infrastructure encryption technologies
both in data transmission and at rest on
servers. Electronic messages sent within
and outside of the Agency that convey
sensitive data are encrypted and
transmitted by staff via pre-approved
electronic encryption systems as
required by NASA policy. Approved
security plans are in place for
information systems containing the
records in accordance with the Federal
Information Security Management Act
of 2002 (FISMA) and OMB Circular A—
130, Management of Federal
Information Resources. Only authorized
personnel requiring information in the

official discharge of their duties are
authorized access to records through
approved access or authentication
methods. Access to electronic records is
achieved only from workstations within
the NASA Intranet or via a secure
Virtual Private Network (VPN)
connection that requires two-factor
hardware token authentication or via
employee PIV badge authentication
from NASA-issued computers. The
Department of Interior Federal agency
Human Resources Shared Service
Center in Denver is also compliant with
the FISMA and OMB Circular A—130
security standards and requirements.

Non-electronic records are secured in
locked rooms or locked file cabinets. For
information systems maintained by
NASA partners, who collect, store and
process records on behalf of NASA,
NASA requires documentation and
verification of commensurate safeguards
in accordance with FISMA, NASA
Procedural Requirements (NPR)
2810.1A, and NASA ITS-HBK-2810.02—
05.

RETENTION AND DISPOSAL:

Records are maintained and
dispositioned in accordance with NASA
Records Retention Schedules (NRRS) 3,
Item 19.

SYSTEM MANAGERS AND ADDRESSES:

Associate Administrator for Human
Capital Management, Location 1.
Subsystem Managers: Director,
Personnel Division, Office of Inspector
General, and Chief, Elementary and
Secondary Programs Branch,
Educational Division, Location 1;
Director of Personnel, Locations 1, 3, 4,
6, and 8; Director of Human Resources,
Location 2, 5, and 9; Director, Office of
Human Resources, Location 7; Human
Resources Officer, Location 11; Director,
Human Resources Services Division,
Location 18. Locations are as set forth in
Appendix A.

NOTIFICATION PROCEDURE:

Apply to the System or Subsystem
Manager at the appropriate location
above. In addition to personal
identification (name, Social Security
Number), indicate the specific type of
record, the appropriate date or period of
time, and the specific category of
individual applying (e.g., employee,
former employee, contractor employee).

RECORD ACCESS PROCEDURE:

Same as Notification procedures
above.

CONTESTING RECORD PROCEDURES:

The NASA regulations pertaining to
access to records and for contesting
contents and appealing initial
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determinations by individual concerned
are set forth in 14 CFR part 1212.

RECORD SOURCE CATEGORIES:

Individual on whom the record is
maintained and Personnel Office(s).

EXEMPTIONS:

None.
[FR Doc. 2016—-00689 Filed 1-14—16; 8:45 am]|

BILLING CODE 7510-13-P

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[Docket Nos. 50-003, 50-247, 50-286, 72—
51, 50-333, 72—-12, 50-220, 50-410, 72—-1036,
50-244, 72-67, 50-275, 50-323, 72—26, 50—
361, 50-362, and 72-41; EA—14-137, EA-
14-135, EA-14-136, EA-14-138, EA—14—
139, EA-14-134, and EA-14—140; NRC—
2016-0007]

In the Matter of Entergy Nuclear
Operations, Inc., Indian Point Nuclear
Generating Unit Nos. 1, 2, and 3, and
James A. Fitzpatrick Nuclear Power
Plant; Exelon Generation Company,
LLC, Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station,
Units 1 and 2, and R.E. Ginna Nuclear
Power Plant; Pacific Gas and Electric
Company, Diablo Canyon Power Plant,
Units 1 and 2; and Southern California
Edison Company, San Onofre Nuclear
Generating Station, Units 2 and 3,
including Independent Spent Fuel
Storage Installations for All Facilities

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.

ACTION: Confirmatory order; issuance.

SUMMARY: The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) is authorizing the
licensees to transfer, receive, possess,
transport, import, and use certain
firearms and large-capacity ammunition
feeding devices not previously
permitted to be owned or possessed
under Commission authority,
notwithstanding certain local, State, or
Federal firearms laws, including
regulations that prohibit such actions, as
reflected in the confirmatory orders for
the nuclear plant facilities listed above.

DATES: Each confirmatory order was
issued to the licensees on January 5,
2016. The effective dates are reflected in
the attached orders.

ADDRESSES: Please refer to Docket ID:
NRC-2016—-0007 when contacting the
NRC about the availability of
information regarding this document.
You may obtain publicly-available
information related to this document
using any of the following methods:

e Federal Rulemaking Web site: Go to
http://www.regulations.gov and search
for Docket ID: NRC-2016-0007. Address

questions about NRC dockets to Carol
Gallagher; telephone: 301-415-3463;
email: Carol.Gallagher@nrc.gov. For
technical questions, contact the
individual listed in the FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT section of this
document.

e NRC’s Agencywide Documents
Access and Management System
(ADAMS): You may obtain publicly-
available documents online in the
ADAMS Public Documents collection at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/
adams.html. To begin the search, select
“ADAMS Public Documents’ and then
select “Begin Web-based ADAMS
Search.” For problems with ADAMS,
please contact the NRC’s Public
Document Room (PDR) reference staff at
1-800-397-4209, 301-415-4737, or by
email to pdr.resource@nrc.gov. Orders
EA-14-135, EA-14-136, EA-14-137,
EA-14-138, EA-14-139, EA-14-134,
and EA-14-140 are available in ADAMS
under Accession Nos. ML15176A264,
ML15176A028, ML15176A306,
ML15176A256, ML15174A020, and
ML15174A102, respectively.

e NRC’s PDR: You may examine and
purchase copies of public documents at
the NRC’s PDR, Room O1-F21, One
White Flint North, 11555 Rockville
Pike, Rockville, Maryland 20852.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Siva
P. Lingam, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, DC 20555—
0001; telephone: 301-415-1564, email:
Siva.Lingam@nrc.gov .

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The text of
each Order is attached.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 7th day
of January 2016.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Anne T. Boland,
Director, Division of Operating Reactor

Licensing, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

In the Matter of Entergy Nuclear
Operations, Inc., Entergy Nuclear
Indian Point 2, LLC, and Entergy
Nuclear Indian Point 3, LLC

(Indian Point Nuclear Generating Unit
Nos. 1, 2, and 3)

Docket Nos. 50-003, 50-247, 50-286,
AND 72-51

License Nos. DPR-5, DPR-26, and DPR-
64

EA-14-135 and EA-14-136

CONFIRMATORY ORDER
MODIFYING LICENSE

I

Entergy Nuclear Indian Point 2, LLC,
is the owner of Indian Point Nuclear
Generating Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Entergy
Nuclear Indian Point 3, LLC, is the
owner of Indian Point Nuclear
Generating Unit No. 3, and Entergy
Nuclear Operations, Inc. (“Entergy” or
“the licensee”) is the operator of Indian
Point Nuclear Generating Unit Nos. 1, 2,
and 3, including the general-licensed
Independent Spent Fuel Storage
Installation (hereinafter “Indian Point”
or “the facility”), and holder of
Provisional Operating License No. DPR—
5, Facility Operating License Nos. DPR—
26 and DPR-64, and Docket No. 72-51
issued by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (“NRC” or ‘“Commission”’)
under Title 10, “Energy,” of the Code of
Federal Regulations (10 CFR) Part 50,
“Domestic Licensing of Production and
Utilization Facilities’’; Part 70,
“Domestic Licensing of Special Nuclear
Material”’; and Part 72, “Licensing
Requirements for the Independent
Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel, High-
Level Radioactive Waste, and Reactor-
Related Greater Than Class C Waste.”
The licenses authorize the operation of
Indian Point with the conditions
specified therein. The facilities are
located on the owner’s site in
Westchester County, New York.

II.

By application dated August 20, 2013
as supplemented by letters dated
November 21, 2013, and May 13 and
July 24, 2014, and citing letters dated
April 27 and October 27, 2011, and
January 4, 2012, Entergy requested,
under Commission Order EA-13-092,
that under the provisions of Section
161A of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954,
as amended, the Commission permit the
transfer, receipt, possession, transport,
import, and use of certain firearms and
large-capacity ammunition-feeding
devices by security personnel who
protect a facility owned or operated by
a licensee or certificate holder of the
Commission that is designated by the
Commission. Section 161A confers on
the Commission the authority to permit
a licensee’s security personnel to
possess and use firearms, ammunition
or devices, notwithstanding local, State,
and certain Federal firearms laws
(including regulations) that may
prohibit such possession and use.

On review of the Entergy application
for Commission authorization to use
Section 161A preemption authority at
Indian Point, the NRC staff has found
the following:
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